

CLIMATE COMMITTEE

312-454-0400 cmap.illinois.gov

AGENDA - FINAL

Thursday, July 17, 2025

1:00 PM

WORKSHOP

Please note this meeting is fully remote. You can join from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82836550659?pwd=RT01YVWaueR0Jm7vphiDSevoairOF0.1

Meeting ID: 828 3655 0659 Passcode: 403411

CMAP provides the opportunity for public comment. Individuals are encouraged to submit comment by email to info@cmap.illinois.gov at least 24 hours before the meeting. A record of all written public comments will be maintained and made publicly available.

The total cumulative time for public comment is limited to 15 minutes, unless determined otherwise by the Chair. Public comment is limited to three minutes per person unless the Chair designates a longer or shorter time period. Public comments will be invited in this order: Comments from in person attendees submitted ahead of time; comments from in-person attendees not previously submitted; comments from virtual attendees submitted ahead of time; and comments from virtual attendees not previously submitted.

To review CMAP's public participation policy, please visit https://www.cmap.illinois.gov/committees. If you require a reasonable accommodation or language interpretation services to attend or join the meeting, please contact CMAP at least five days before the meeting by email (info@cmap.illinois.gov) or phone (312-454-0400).

25-236

25-235

1.0 Introductions

- 1.01 Zoom Announcements
- 2.0 Announcements
- 2.01 CMAP Updates
- 3.0 Items for discussion

3.01 Climate Action Plan Update

PURPOSE & ACTION: CMAP staff will update the Climate Committee on the Comprehensive Climate Action Plan for the greater Chicago area. CMAP will share the initial GHG and air quality modeling results for the full plan implementation scenario and seeks committee input on results for agriculture, water and wastewater, and waste emission sectors as well as natural carbon sequestration potential. ACTION REQUESTED: Information

Attachments: CAP Memo

3.02 Transportation Resilience Improvement Plan Memo

PURPOSE & ACTION: CMAP staff will inform the Climate Committee on the progress to date and engage in a discussion about key resilience strategies

ACTION REQUESTED: Information

Attachments: Transportation Resilience Improvement Plan Memo

3.03 Illinois Environmental Council on legislative updates

PURPOSE & ACTION: Member Samira Hanessian will update the committee on Illinois Environmental Council activities as it relates to climate legislation.

ACTION REQUESTED: Information

3.04 Legislative update

PURPOSE & ACTION: Intergovernmental Affairs staff will provide an update on recent state legislative activity.

ACTION REQUESTED: Information

Attachments: Legislative Update Memo

4.0 Member Updates

5.0 Public Comment

This is an opportunity for comments from members of the audience.

6.0 Next Workshop

The next meeting of the Climate Committee will occur as a virtual workshop on October 30, 2025 at 1:00pm.

<u>25-237</u> ental

25-233

7.0 Close of workshop



433 West Van Buren Street, Suite 450 Chicago, IL 60607 cmap.illinois.gov | 312-454-0400

MEMORANDUM

То:	CMAP Climate Committee
From:	CAP Project Team
Date:	July 11, 2025
Subject:	Update on the Comprehensive Climate Action Plan for the Greater Chicago area
Action Requested:	Discussion

The project team will update the Climate Committee on the development of the Comprehensive Climate Action Plan (CAP) for the Greater Chicago area, funded by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Climate Pollution Reduction Grant. Since the last Climate committee meeting in May, the team has reviewed initial modeling results across all sectors and engaged the buildings, industry, and transportation working groups for feedback and implementation input. At the July meeting, the team will share progress to date and present initial results—economy-wide GHG and air quality modeling, along with sector results for agriculture, water and wastewater, waste, and carbon sequestration—for discussion.

Table of Contents

1. Quantifying emissions reductions 2
1.1. Economy-wide: Full plan implementation modeling results
1.2. Initial modeling results for agriculture, water and wastewater, and waste sectors and natural carbon sequestration
Agriculture6
Water and wastewater7
Waste
Natural carbon sequestration9
2. Project updates
2.1. Climate questionnaire
2.2. Feedback on initial modeling results for building, industry, and transportation
2.3. Next steps
Appendix

1. Quantifying emissions reductions

At the July meeting, the project team will share emissions reduction modeling results for agriculture, water and wastewater, waste, and natural carbon sequestration. The goal of the meeting is to vet these initial results with the Climate Committee and discuss ways to both overcome barriers and advance implementation. For context and discussion purposes, information about the modeling tool, economy-wide modeling results, sector-specific assumptions used to inform the model, as well as sector-specific results for these sectors, is provided below. For information about the modeling tool, see the May 2025 meeting memo.¹

1.1. Economy-wide: initial modeling results for the full plan implementation scenario

At the May meeting, the project team presented the initial economy-wide modeling results for two scenarios: the current policy and the state and local portion of the plan implementation scenario. Since then, the team has produced results for the full plan implementation scenario, which demonstrates how new or expanded actions can achieve the plan's 80-85 percent emissions reduction target by 2050 as well as the air quality impacts of those actions. Figure 4 illustrates the economy-wide GHG emissions reductions for the full plan implementation scenario, including the state and local portion of the scenario, as well as the current policy scenario.



Figure 4. Economy-wide GHG emissions by scenario in MMT CO2e (2005-2050)

Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.

Current policy scenario. The current policy scenario projects a 36 percent reduction in GHG emissions from 2005 levels by the year 2050. From 2020, this would produce an average annual reduction of 1.04 MMT CO2e between 2020 and 2050—partially contributing to the 4.18 MMT CO2e per year needed to meet the plan's reduction goal (Figure 4). These reductions primarily stem from cleaner electricity in Illinois, largely driven by the Climate and Equitable Jobs Act, as well as fuel economy standards, incentives included in the Inflation Reduction Act, and others.

Plan implementation scenario. The plan implementation scenario builds on the current policy scenario to show how the planning area can reach an 80-85 percent reduction in GHG emissions by 2050 (Figure 4). It includes more than 20 reduction measures across seven emission sectors.²

This scenario also distinguishes what is achievable through state and local actions versus what requires federal action, larger economic changes, and technological advancements. By demonstrating the potential of local and state action, this scenario highlights a path for what regional and state implementers could achieve. The state and local portion of this scenario is based on existing policies and programs adopted within the region or in other U.S. jurisdictions, whereas the full plan implementation scenario includes additional reductions informed by national or state-scale modeling and benchmarks needed to close the remaining emissions gap.

As modeled, the state and local portion of the plan implementation scenario achieves a 61 percent reduction in economy-wide GHG emissions by 2050 compared to 2005 levels (Figure 4). This would result in an average annual reduction rate of 2.63 MMT CO2e between 2020 and 2050—partially contributing to the 4.18 MMT CO2e per year needed. Specific modeling results for the small emissions sectors (agriculture, waste, water/wastewater) and carbon sequestration within the state and local portion of the plan implementation scenario are included in section 03.

Air quality impacts

The project team conducted an air quality and health impact analysis by linking fuel combustion in the modeled scenarios to changes in ambient concentrations of fine particulate matter (PM2.5), nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur dioxide (SO₂), and volatile organic compounds (VOCs), all of which contribute significantly to premature mortality and other health issues in the planning area and U.S.

Using the USEPA's Co-Benefits Risk Assessment (COBRA) screening model,³ the analysis estimates air quality improvements based on sector-specific changes in technology and fuel use, such as shifts in vehicle types and vehicle miles traveled. At the July meeting, the project team will present initial results from this analysis, highlighting expected reductions in NOx, SO2, PM2.5, and VOCs, as well as the associated public health benefits of the plan implementation scenario when compared to the current policy scenario.

1.2. Initial modeling results for agriculture, water and wastewater, and waste sectors and natural carbon sequestration

The project team is seeking feedback on four areas included in the analysis: the agriculture, water and wastewater, and waste emission sectors, as well as natural carbon sequestration potential. When agriculture, water and wastewater, and waste are considered together, the current policy scenario results in a 5 percent reduction (0.28 MMT CO2e) in GHG emissions from 2005 levels, while the plan implementation scenario provides a 44 percent reduction (2.25 MMT CO2e) (Figure 5). More than 98 percent of these emissions reductions under the plan implementation scenario are driven by the state and local actions, underscoring the essential role of local and state-level leadership in decarbonizing these relatively small but important sectors. In addition, natural carbon sequestration removes an estimated 6.00 MMT CO2e annually in 2050 under the plan implementation scenario.

A detailed breakdown of the sector emissions and carbon sequestration estimates are provided below. Additional details on the policies and programs used to model reduction measures are included in the appendix. Details on the full slate of reduction measures will be made available on the Comprehensive Climate Action Plan engagement website in the coming weeks.





*The plan implementation scenario largely reflects state and local actions, resulting in nearly identical trend lines. Natural carbon sequestration estimates are not included in this chart. Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.



Figure 6. Agriculture, water and wastewater, and waste emissions and natural carbon sequestration by scenario, MMT CO2e (2020-2050)

Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.

Table 2. Percent change in agriculture, water and wastewater, and waste emissions and
natural carbon sequestration by scenario, 2020 to 2050

Sector	2020	rom 2020 to 2050		
	emissions, MMT CO2e	Current policy scenario	State and local portion	Plan implementation scenario
Agriculture	2.14	0%	-27%	-27%
Water and wastewater	1.78	0%	-53%	-53%
Waste	0.96	0%	-50%	-50%
Natural carbon sequestration	-2.74*	0%	-119%	-119%

* Natural carbon sequestration emissions are based on emissions or reductions associated with activities such as afforestation, deforestation, and land management practices. See the October 2024 Climate Committee memo for more details.⁴

Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.

Agriculture

The project team has identified the four decarbonization objectives for the agriculture sector:

- 1. Improve nutrient management and soil health
- 2. Improve manure and feed management
- 3. Increase the carbon storage potential of agricultural lands
- 4. Improve the energy efficiency of agriculture and livestock operations

While these objectives guide the overall strategy, not all can be quantified in this planning effort. The analysis focuses on two key reduction measures that align with objectives 1 and 2:

- Reducing nitrous oxide emissions from soil management
- Reducing methane emissions from manure management

Objective 3 is addressed further below in the context of natural carbon sequestration.

In 2020, agricultural emissions were estimated to be 2.14 MMT CO2e. Under the current policy scenario, no significant change in emissions is projected (Table 3). In contrast, the plan implementation scenario emphasizes state financial incentives to support improved nutrient and manure management practices.

These targeted actions, addressing non-CO2 gases, such as nitrous oxide and methane from soils and manure, are estimated to reduce agricultural emissions by 27 percent from 2020 levels, with most reductions occurring by 2035 (Figure 6). See the appendix for more details on the assumptions used to estimate these reductions.

Agriculture emissions	2020 GHG	Percent change in emissions from 2020 to 2050			
subsectors	emissions,	Current	State and local	Plan	
	MMT CO2e	policy	portion	implementation	
	regional	scenario		scenario	
Enteric fermentation	0.18	0%	-40%	-40%	
Liming	0.14	0%	-0%	-0%	
Manure management (N ₂ O)	<.01	0%	-40%	-40%	
Organic N ₂ O	<.01	0%	-0%	-0%	
Residue burning	<.01	0%	-0%	-0%	
Soil management	1.27	0%	-40%	-40%	
Synthetic N ₂ O	0.55	0%	-0%	-0%	

 Table 3. Percent change in agriculture emissions by subsector, 2020 to 2050

Note: Organic N₂O refers to natural N₂O emitted through biological and microbial processes within environments, such as wetlands, or from over-fertilized agricultural fields. Synthetic N₂O refers to the N₂O that is a byproduct of the chemical reactions associated with the use of nitrogen fertilizers. Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.

Water and wastewater

The project team has identified four decarbonization objectives for the water and wastewater sector:

- 1. Increase energy efficiency in water and wastewater operations
- 2. Shift water and wastewater systems to clean energy
- 3. Lower domestic water consumption
- 4. Reduce the need for energy-intensive water treatment

While these objectives guide the overall strategy, not all can be quantified in this planning effort. The analysis focuses on two reduction measures that align with objectives 1, 2, and 4:

- Electrifying water and wastewater operations.
- Reducing methane and nitrous oxide emissions through upgraded wastewater treatment processes.

In 2020, emissions were estimated to be 1.78 MMT CO2e. Under the current policy scenario, emissions are projected to stay flat through 2050 (Table 4). The plan implementation scenario assumes widespread state and local action to modernize and electrify water and wastewater operations. Drawing from recommendations in the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District's Climate Action Plan, these efforts—particularly replacing outdated water treatment tanks with advanced technologies—are projected to achieve a 52 percent reduction in emissions from 2020 levels by 2035, with reductions sustained through 2050. Additional strategies to retrofit building operations and clean the electricity grid, which would reduce water conveyance-related emissions, are included in the appendix.

Subsectors	2020 GHG	Percent change in emissions from 2020 to 2050			
	emissions, MMT CO2e	Current policy scenario	State and local portion	Plan implementation scenario	
Water conveyance	0.12	0%	-72%	-72%	
Commercial wastewater	0.72	0%	-55%	-55%	
Wastewater treatment CH4	0.86	0%	-52%	-52%	
Wastewater treatment N2O	0.08	0%	-52%	-52%	

 Table 4. Percent change in water and wastewater emissions by subsector, 2020 to 2050

Note: Water conveyance emissions from Illinois and Wisconsin counties are based on the methodology used in CMAP's 2019 regional GHG emissions inventory, which calculated emissions based on electricity usage. Water conveyance emissions from Indiana counties are based on the methodology used in NIRPC's 2017 GHG emissions inventory, which calculated emissions based on natural gas usage. There may be additional emissions from water conveyance that are not represented in the inventory.

Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.

Waste

The project team has identified three decarbonization objectives for the waste sector:

- 1. Reduce and divert organic waste from the waste stream
- 2. Expand and improve biogas collection from landfills
- 3. Reduce inorganic landfill waste and improve overall waste management practices

While these objectives guide the overall strategy, not all can be quantified in this planning effort. The analysis focuses on one key reduction measure – reducing methane emissions from landfills – which aligns with objectives 1 and 2.

In 2020, waste-related emissions were estimated at 0.96 MMT CO2e. However, this figure only accounts for emissions from waste management facilities located in the planning area and does not fully reflect emissions associated with waste generated in the region but managed elsewhere. Under the current policy scenario, no significant change in emissions is projected.

In contrast, the plan implementation scenario emphasizes expanded state and local action to cut landfill methane emissions. Key strategies include:

- Organic waste diversion programs, modeled after Washington's Use Food Well Washington Plan and House Bill 2301, which supports waste prevention, rescue, and recovery programs.
- Expanded landfill gas capture requirements, modeled after California's Global Warming Solutions Act and Code Regulation 95464, which mandates that more landfills install gas collection systems.

Waste combustion emissions remain unaddressed but represent a small share of the sector's total emissions. Together, these strategies are estimated to reduce waste sector emissions by 43 percent by 2035 and 50 percent by 2050, compared to 2020 levels (Table 2).

Subsectors	2020 GHG emissions, MMT CO2e	Percent change in emissions from 2020 to 2050			
		Current policy scenario	State and local portion	Plan implementation scenario	
Landfills	0.94	0%	-28%	-28%	
Waste combustion CO2	0.02	0%	-0%	-0%	

Table 5. Percent change in waste emissions by subsector, 2020 to 2050

Note: Waste combustion CO_2 emissions reported by the USEPA only account for the non-biogenic fraction of waste that is burned at landfill recovery facilities. Since the landfill gas collection measure in the waste sector measures the collection of methane produced by the breakdown of organic waste, the methane is treated as biogenic CO2, and the combustion emissions are treated like other biofuels in that their emissions are not counted against net totals.

Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.

Natural carbon sequestration

The project team has identified three strategic objectives to enhance carbon sequestration:

- 1. Maintain and expand natural lands
- 2. Advance development practices that protect natural resources
- 3. Increase the carbon storage potential of agricultural lands

While these objectives guide the overall strategy, not all can be quantified in this planning effort. The analysis focuses on two key reduction measures that align with objectives 1 and 3:

- Increase CO2 sequestration in forest carbon
- Increase CO2 sequestration in agricultural soils

In 2020, the greater Chicago region sequestered 2.74 MMT CO2e through afforestation, deforestation, and land management practices. While land protection, restoration, and other improvements are anticipated to continue, they are not captured in the current policy scenario. The plan implementation scenario, however, incorporates state and local financial incentives to expand and protect natural carbon sinks—particularly through restoration of degraded lands and preservation of existing carbon-rich landscapes. Assuming a \$200 per ton CO2 cost of sequestration, these efforts are projected to increase carbon sequestration by 48 percent by 2035 and 119 percent by 2050.

Subsectors	2020 GHG	Emissions sequestration from 2020 to 2050			
	emissions, MMT CO2e	Current policy scenario	State and local portion	Plan implementation scenario	
Trees and wetlands sequestration	-2.51	-2.51	-3.38	-3.38	
Cropland conservation and conversion sequestration	-0.23	-0.23	-2.63	-2.63	

Table 6. Sequestered carbon⁵ by subsector, 2020 to 2050

Source: CMAP and E3, 2025.

2. Project updates

2.1. Climate questionnaire

As part of the planning process, the project team has released a community questionnaire to help ensure the plan reflects local priorities and burdens. The questionnaire is available in English and Spanish, will remain open through July 29, 2025, and respondents will be entered to win a \$20 gift card.

Please consider sharing the questionnaire with your networks to boost participation. To make it easy, the project team has created a promotional toolkit, which contains flyers, social media graphics, and sample text to use in newsletters and posts.

2.2. Feedback on initial modeling results for building, industry, and transportation

In June and July, the project team workshopped initial modeling results with the building, industry, and transportation working groups. Each meeting included project updates, initial economy-wide modeling results, and sector-specific modeling assumptions and results. Following the presentations, working group members provided feedback and discussed critical implementation steps, known barriers, and key actors. Below is a summary of insights from each meeting.

Buildings working group

- Stakeholders were surprised by the significant role that state and local governments can play in advancing building decarbonization, even without federal support—though federal investment remains essential for achieving emissions reduction goals.
- Strategies prioritized for discussion included Building Performance Standards (BPS), allnew electric construction requirements, land use strategies, and heat pump incentives.
- Stakeholders emphasized the need for collaboration and streamlined decision-making. Suggestions included convening regional interest groups of building owners to codevelop ambitious but feasible building performance standards, publishing case studies and policy templates from successful local initiatives, creating regionally-funded programs to avoid competition and inefficiencies between jurisdictions, and advocating for clear state-level policies that support utility decarbonization investments.
- Labor and political resistance to state-level electrification policies remain a key barrier, driven by concerns over gas-related jobs and consumer freedom. Members recommended targeted education and reframing electrification as a workforce transition opportunity.

Industry working group

- Stakeholders were surprised by the relatively limited impact state and local measures could have on industrial decarbonization by 2050.
- Despite previously raised concerns, participants appreciated the modeling of carbon capture and storage as an optional strategy to achieve further reductions.
- Strategies of greatest interest included facility emissions limits, equipment emissions standards, and state-level buy clean programs.
- While large emissions reductions will depend on federal action in a few dominant subsectors, stakeholders also expressed interest in supporting small and mid-sized manufacturers and leveraging new and existing local programs.

Transportation working group

• **Passenger electric vehicles (EVs):** Participants emphasized that the stock turnover and emissions reductions achieved through EV sales mandates will require complementary strategies, including investments in charging infrastructure and reducing reliance on single-occupancy vehicles. Some felt the plan implementation scenario relies too heavily

on ambitious electrification goals, given regulatory uncertainty, and emphasized focusing on strategies within state and local control.

- Medium and heavy-duty EVs: Participants were encouraged by potential emissions reductions from MDHVs, but noted several barriers to achieving those reductions, including long fleet turnover timelines and high associated costs, changing regulations and economic uncertainty, needed consensus around technological advancements, and lacking grid capacity. Participants noted that setting ambitious goals for this subsector would send important signals to the market, and that interim strategies like low-carbon fuels could be helpful.
- **Reducing vehicle miles traveled (VMT):** A lack of sustainable funding for regional transit operations was seen as a major barrier. Participants highlighted the complementary roles of transit, active transportation, land use planning, and demand management, and encouraged the plan to feature these strategies more prominently due to their public health and mobility co-benefits.

2.3. Next steps

Final modeling results will be presented to the CAP steering committee in late summer 2025, followed by a presentation of the draft plan to the same committee in early fall. Climate committee members will be invited to attend the two remaining steering committee meetings virtually. Additionally, members may be asked to review portions of the draft plan related to implementation authority, among other areas as appropriate.

Appendix

To estimate emissions reductions and sequestration from agriculture, water and wastewater, waste, and carbon sequestration, the project team developed implementation rates based on existing state and local policies —both within the region and from other states—as well as additional analysis to align with the plan's 80-85 percent reduction target.

Tables A.1-A.4 summarize the source material and explain how each policy or program has been adapted to the greater Chicago area. Unless otherwise noted, programs are assumed to begin implementation in 2026. While each reference policy serves as an important tool for reducing emissions, quantifying their individual impacts is challenging due to overlap with other measures. Notes in the table indicate where such overlaps occur.

Policy or program	Description	How policies informed modeling				
Plan implementation scenario - Sta	Plan implementation scenario - State and local strategies only					
Soil nutrient management – US EPA State-level Non-C02 GHG Mitigation Report ⁶	Creates financial incentives to adopt soil fertilizer application practices that reduce nitrous oxide emissions. Practices include reducing fertilizer application and using nitrification inhibitors with fertilizer application.	 Reductions are achieved through shifts in non-CO2 emissions from agricultural soils below the current policy scenario. Assumes increased adoption of practices that reduce nitrous oxide emissions from soils. Because there are no examples of direct regulation to require agricultural nitrous oxide emissions reductions, it is assumed that financial incentives are used to change farming practices. 				
Livestock methane management – US EPA State-level Non-CO2 GHG Mitigation Report ⁷	Provides financial incentives to adopt animal feeding and manure management practices that reduce methane emissions and increase the productivity of livestock. Animal feeding and productivity practices include intensive grazing and the use of antimethanogen vaccines. Manure management practices include anaerobic digestion of manure through covered lagoons, complete-mix, and plug-flow digesters.	 Reductions are achieved through shifts in non-CO2 emissions from agricultural soils below BAU. Assumes increased livestock productivity, which means fewer animals are required to produce dairy and meat, and fewer manure management practices are needed to mitigate methane production. Because there are no examples of direct regulation requiring agricultural methane reductions, it is assumed that financial incentives are used to change farming practices. 				

Table A.1. Agriculture reference policies, programs, and other analyses used to inform scenarios.

Policy or program	Description	How policies informed modeling
Current policy scenario		
Illinois Climate and Equitable Jobs	State of Illinois requires a reduction of all	Influences the adoption rate of renewable electricity
Act (CEJA) Electricity Generation	CO2e and co-pollutant emissions	generation for Illinois counties.
Emissions Rules	from electricity generation units by 2045.	- Assumes 100 percent of renewable electricity
		generation by 2045.
		- Note: The adoption rate of renewables is influenced
		by policies included in other emissions sectors.
Plan implementation scenario - Sta	te and local strategies only	
Divert organic waste – Use Food	Sets a state-level target for a 50 percent	Reductions are achieved through shifts in annual
Well Washington Plan ⁸ and	reduction in food waste by 2030. Together,	methane (CH4) emissions, resulting from smaller
Washington House Bill 2301 ⁹	the Plan and bill create organic waste	volumes of organic materials being sent to landfills to
	prevention, rescue, and recovery programs,	decompose.
	including residential and commercial	- Shifts in CH4 emissions start in 2027; by 2030, non-
	compost collection services, as well as	CO2 emissions are reduced by 29 percent.
	degradability labeling requirements.	- The share of landfill emissions from food waste is
		derived from a national EPA report on landfill
		methane, which is equivalent to 58 percent. ¹⁰
		- The US EPA State Inventory and Projection Tool was
		used to generate a state-level forecast of landfill
		methane emissions for Illinois, Indiana, and
		Wisconsin.
Expand landfill gas capture	Expands the number of landfills previously	Reductions are achieved through shifts in non-CO2
systems – California Global	required to install gas capture systems	emissions, resulting from improved waste management
Warming Solutions Act (AB32) ¹¹	under Obama-era methane regulations by	activities.
and Code Regulation 95464 ¹²	lowering size and emissions thresholds.	- Uses USEPA state-level estimates for landfill gas
	Prohibits the use of open flares to burn off	mitigation rates.
	captured gas, encouraging the collection of	Note: No reductions are projected in the initial
	gas for energy use and the production of	modeling results; however, the project team is
	renewable natural gas.	considering refinements to improve the model.

Table A.2. Waste reference policies, programs, and other analyses used to inform scenarios.

Policy or program	Description	How policies informed modeling
Current policy scenario		
Illinois Climate and Equitable Jobs Act (CEJA) Electricity Generation Emissions Rules	State of Illinois requires a reduction of all CO2e and co-pollutant emissions from electricity generation units by 2045.	 Influences the adoption rate of renewable electricity generation for Illinois counties, and therefore, the electricity used by water and wastewater facilities. Assumes 100 percent of renewable electricity generation by 2045. Note: The adoption rate of renewables is influenced by policies included in other emissions sectors.
Plan implementation scenario		
National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) Standard Scenarios	Explores potential scenarios impacting electric sector decarbonization.	Influences the adoption rate of renewable electricity generation for non-Illinois counties. Applies NREL's 95 Percent Decarbonization by 2050 standard scenario, which extends renewable energy generation requirements to Wisconsin and Indiana.

Table A.3. Water and wastewater reference policies	es, programs	, and other analy	ses used to inform	scenarios.
--	--------------	-------------------	--------------------	------------

Table A.3. continued

Policy or program	Description	How policies informed modeling	
State and local strategies within the plan implementation scenario			
Colorado's Building Performance program	Establishes benchmarking requirements and building performance standards (BPS) for reducing GHG emissions by 7 percent by 2026 and 20 percent by 2030 relative to 2021 emissions levels. The program applies to large commercial, multi-family, and public buildings (equal to or greater than 50,000 square feet) and expands to smaller buildings over time.	Reductions result from reduced natural gas demand from commercial and public buildings as they comply with BPS standards. Assumes public water and wastewater facilities meet the commercial and public buildings threshold of 50,000 square feet or larger.	
Decommissioning of outdated wastewater treatment tanks – MWRD Climate Action Plan ¹³	Sets the goal of decommissioning the Stickney Water Reclamation Plant's Imhoff tanks and updating them with newer technology by 2025.	 Reductions are achieved through shifts in non-CO2 emissions (methane) from wastewater treatment. Reductions are based on MWRD's abatement estimates from decommissioning the Imhoff tanks and are scaled proportionally relative to each of the county's total wastewater-related methane emissions. 	

Description	How policies informed modeling		
Plan implementation scenario - State and local strategies only			
Estimates impacts from financial incentives for land management practices that preserve existing sinks and increase sinks on degraded lands.	 Reductions are achieved by increasing the carbon sequestered through forest and wetland protection, restoration, and management activities, as well as cropland conservation and conversion. Assumes payment of \$200/tCO2 sequestered/reduced to incentivize adoption of land management practices. Note: Additional research is being conducted to provide more information on the incentives and sequestration activities. 		
	Description <i>te and local strategies only</i> Estimates impacts from financial incentives for land management practices that preserve existing sinks and increase sinks on degraded lands.		

Table A.4. Carbon sequestration reference policies, programs, and other analyses used to inform scenarios.

Endnotes

- ¹ CMAP, "Update on the Comprehensive Climate Action Plan for the Greater Chicago area," Memo to the Climate Committee, May 15, 2025, https://cmap.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c5668ca7-4a5e-4231-8817-cbd696d7c0ed.docx
- ² While natural carbon sequestration strategies will be modeled, emissions reductions from carbon sinks do not count toward the 85 percent target.
- ³ USEPA, "Co-benefits risk assessment health impacts screening and mapping tool (COBRA)", June 2025, https://www.epa.gov/cobra

⁴ CMAP, "Update on the Comprehensive Climate Action Plan for the Greater Chicago area," Memo to the Climate Committee, October 17, 2024, <u>https://cmap.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=250e2b6c-4e7f-4782-9a79-deb6f24e9fbc.pdf</u>

⁵ Pathways models carbon sequestration under a land use, land-use change and forestry (LULUCF) sector, which includes the accounting of emissions related to how land is used (including forests, wetlands, and agricultural/croplands), changes in land uses (deforestation and afforestation) and management of those land uses (e.g., regenerative agricultural practices).

⁶ USEPA, "U.S. State-level Non-CO2 Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Potential: 2025-2050", 2019, https://cfpub.epa.gov/ghgdata/nonco2/usreports/.

⁷ USEPA, "U.S. State-level Non-CO2 Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Potential: 2025-2050", 2019, https://cfpub.epa.gov/ghgdata/nonco2/usreports/.

⁸ Washington Department of Ecology, "Use Food Well Washington Plan," 2021,

⁹ Washington State Legislature, HB 2301,

https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary?BillNumber=2301&Year=2023&Initiative=false.

¹⁰ USEPA, "Food Waste Management: Quantifying Methane Emissions from Landfilled Food Waste," Office of Research and Development, October 2023, https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-10/food-waste-landfill-methane-10-8-23-final_508-compliant.pdf.

¹¹ California Air Resources Board, "Landfill Methane Regulation: Summary of provisions in California's Global Warming Solutions Act, Assembly Bill (AB) 32," https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/landfill-methane-regulation/about.

¹² California Code of Regulations, Title 17, Section 95463-95464,

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/landfill-methane-regulation.

¹³ Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, "Climate Action Plan," 2023,

https://mwrd.org/sites/default/files/documents/MWRD_Climate_Action_Plan_230720.pdf.

¹⁴ Naturebase, "Naturebase: A Global Map for Nature-Based Solutions," The Nature Conservancy, 2024,

https://app.naturebase.org/map/adm1/66186276B11383391196245.

Agenda Item No. 3.02



433 West Van Buren Street, Suite 450 Chicago, IL 60607 cmap.illinois.gov | 312-454-0400

MEMORANDUM

То:	Climate Committee
From:	CMAP Staff
Date:	Thursday, July 10, 2025
Subject:	Transportation Resilience Improvement Plan
Purpose:	Update on the Transportation Resilience Improvement Plan
Action Requested: For information	

CMAP seeks to update the Climate Committee on the development of the Transportation Resilience Improvement Plan (TRIP) for northeastern Illinois. Since the last update in February, staff have solicited transportation resilience projects to consider for the plan and developed a suite of strategies to advance resilience at the project- and organization-levels. At the July meeting, staff will inform the Climate Committee on the progress to date and engage in a discussion about key resilience strategies.

Resilience projects

In the spring, CMAP solicited transportation resilience projects to include in the Transportation Resilience Improvement Plan (TRIP) project list.¹ The TRIP project list will be the region's first compilation of transportation resilience projects and can help position the region to be competitive for federal investment opportunities, including the Federal Highway Administration's (FHWA) Promoting Resilient Operations for Transformative, Efficient, and Cost-Saving Transportation (PROTECT) Discretionary Grant Program. The purpose of the project list is to identify priority resilience investments that address the greatest vulnerabilities within transportation systems in northeastern Illinois.

A resilience project enhances the transportation system's ability to anticipate, prepare for, or adapt to conditions or withstand, respond to, or recover rapidly from disruptions, including the ability to:

- Resist hazards or withstand impacts from weather events and natural disasters.
- Reduce the magnitude or duration of impacts of a disruptive weather event or natural disaster.
- Have absorptive capacity, adaptive capacity, and recoverability to decrease project vulnerability to weather events or other natural disasters.
- Consider incorporation of natural infrastructure.

¹ More information on the project solicitation process can be found in the TRIP resilience project guidance document: https://engage.cmap.illinois.gov/25892/widgets/87452/documents/67669.

Through the solicitation process (from May 6 to June 3, 2025), CMAP received 65 submissions from 14 jurisdictions. The project team is currently evaluating all submitted projects to present to the TRIP steering committee in late July.

Resilience strategies

In addition to the project list that will be included in the TRIP, CMAP developed a list of projectand organization-level resilience strategies that transportation managers can incorporate into future project designs, planning, and decision-making. On May 20, 2025, Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning (CMAP) hosted a virtual stakeholder workshop to provide an overview of the resilience project submission process and gather feedback on resilience strategies being developed as part of the plan.

Project-level strategies. These include gray infrastructure, nature-based, and hybrid strategies. The purpose of the list of project-level strategies is to demonstrate a range of potential features that transportation managers can consider incorporating in future projects to increase resilience. The project-level resilience strategies are targeted at reducing impacts to flooding and extreme heat, as these are the climate hazards that were identified as posing the greatest risk to the transportation system in CMAP's Risk-based Vulnerability Assessment.

Strategies include:

- Relocate or elevate roadways
- Elevate bridges
- Install flood wall to prevent flooding of roadway
- Upgrades to or installation of stormwater management infrastructure
- Flood protection measures for transit tunnels
- Install retention/ detention ponds and bioswales
- Make ditch improvements or deepen ditches
- Install swales, ditches, and rain gardens
- Restore wetlands
- Implement natural revetments
- Reconnect floodplains
- Create high flow bypass
- Manage streams for flood mitigation: Daylight streams, revegetate riparian areas, reconfigure stream channels, place large woody debris, and implement rocky in-stream techniques
- Install geotextiles, such as green mats, on embankments
- Use permeable pavements and grass medians
- Install shade structures and shelters along sidewalks and at outdoor transit stops
- Provide shade trees along trails, sidewalks and at transit stops
- Use cool pavement technologies
- Upgrade rail to increase rail-neutral temperature

Organizational strategies. These aim to integrate resilience throughout key planning and decision-making processes. This type of integration is essential for meaningful and continued resilience progress. In addition to the priority project list and project-level resilience strategies,

CMAP and other transportation implementers can leverage organizational resilience strategies to integrate resilience throughout key planning and decision-making processes. Specifically, implementers can support broader resilience planning by integrating resilience into:

- Plans
- Policies
- Project development and design
- Performance measures
- Partner support and capacity-building efforts

Next steps

Over the summer, the project team will continue to refine the resilience strategies based on stakeholder input. The team will also draft the plan, which will be presented to the project steering committee for review in September, followed by CMAP's committees later in the fall.

24

Agenda Item X.XX



433 West Van Buren Street, Suite 450 Chicago, IL 60607 cmap.illinois.gov | 312-454-0400

MEMORANDUM

CMAP Climate Committee
CMAP Intergovernmental Affairs Staff
July 2, 2025
Legislative update
Information

Strengthen Communities funding initiative

CMAP's Strengthen Communities funding initiative, which appropriates \$2 million to the agency to support the planning functions and programs required in the Illinois Regional Planning Act, was successfully incorporated into the final FY26 budget. The FY26 budget appropriates \$2 million via the Department of Human Services to CMAP for operational expenses. CMAP staff will work with DHS to access the funds and utilize them to strengthen CMAP's technical assistance offerings in alignment with the Regional Planning Act.

FY26 Budget

The General Assembly passed the FY26 budget (SB2510) on May 31 in the final hours before scheduled adjournment. Shortly after, the General Assembly passed companion budget implementation (HB1075) and revenue (HB2755) legislation. The \$55.2 billion budget increases spending by about 4% compared to the current fiscal year. Included in this package is a \$100 million Budget Reserve for Immediate Disbursements and Governmental Efficiencies (BRIDGE) fund to address any unanticipated delays in funding or failures of revenue. The revenue package, totaling approximately \$800 million, included some new taxes on sports betting, tobacco and vape products, and additional taxes on foreign and out-of-state corporations. Taken together, the final budget package accounts for an approximate \$500 million shortfall in revenue projections since the Governor put forward his FY26 budget proposal in February.

On June 16, Governor Pritzker signed into law the FY26 budget, along with companion budget implementation and revenue legislation. These take effect on July 1, 2025.

Transit funding and reform

The General Assembly concluded its spring session without passing legislation to address transit funding and reform. Representative Delgado (SB2111 HA1) and Senator Villivalam (HB3438 SFA2) each filed bills in the final week of session addressing a series of governance reforms to the northeastern Illinois transit system. The bills would create a new Northern Illinois Transit Authority (NITA) to oversee operations of Metra, Pace, and CTA. The Senate bill also included several funding options that would raise revenues for transit operations and capital.

Following the introduction of a few amendments, the Senate bill passed by a vote of 32-22 during the final moments of session. The House did not take up the Senate bill, nor did the House bill advance to a floor vote.

Lawmakers are expected to work through the summer to address governance and funding issues raised throughout the committee hearings and legislative debate.

The General Assembly is not scheduled to reconvene until veto session in the fall, although legislative leadership have left the door open for a possible special session earlier if necessary.

General legislative activity

The General Assembly adjourned its regular session on May 31 and will return in the fall for the veto session, scheduled for October 14–16 and 28–30.

CMAP staff tracks legislation before the General Assembly that impacts the region and is relevant to the agency's work. CMAP staff has outlined below key pieces of legislation passed during the recent regular session that may be of interest to the Climate Committee.

It should be noted this is not an exhaustive list of legislation tracked by CMAP staff. For more information on other tracked legislation of interest, please contact Ryan Gougis, IGA Specialist at rgougis@cmap.illinois.gov.

FY26 Budget, BIMP, and Revenue

<u>SB2510</u> – **FY26 Budget** (Sen. Sims, Jr./Rep. Welch) **Description:** Makes appropriations and reappropriations for capital and operating expenditures and other purposes for State Fiscal Year 2026. **Status:** Signed into Law on 6/16/2025 (Public Act 104-0003)

HB1075 - FY26 BIMP (Rep. Gabel/Sen. Sims)

Description: Creates the Fiscal Year 2026 Budget Implementation Act. Adds, deletes, and makes changes to various statutory provisions as needed to implement the State budget for Fiscal Year 2026. **Status:** Signed into Law on 6/16/2025 (Public Act 104-0002)

HB2755 - FY26 Revenue Omnibus (Rep. Tarver, II/Sen. Villanueva)

Description: Makes changes to various Acts concerning the following revenue provisions: tax amnesty; the business interest deduction; deposits into the Road Fund; civil penalties under the Environmental Protection Act; short-term rentals; tobacco products; grocery taxes; the 9-8-8 suicide prevention system; marketplace facilitators and remote retailers; motor fuel taxes; affordable housing property tax credits; and tobacco and cigarette taxes. Creates the American Hostage Tax Liability Postponement Act. Creates the Advancing Innovative Manufacturing for Illinois Tax Credit Act. Creates the Digital Advertisement Tax Act. Contains other provisions. Effective immediately, except that certain provisions take effect July 1, 2025, certain provisions take effect January 1, 2026, and certain provisions take effect January 1, 2027.

Status: Signed into Law on 6/16/2025 (Public Act 104-0006)

Climate Mitigation & Resiliency

HB2419 - EPA-LOCAL SITING REVIEW (Rep. Hirschauer/Sen. Villa)

Description: Amends the Environmental Protection Act. Provides that, when determining whether certain local siting review criteria have been met, the county board of the county or the governing body of the municipality, as applicable, shall consider, among other things, vehicle emissions. Requires the county board or governing body to conduct a hearing in a manner accessible to individuals with disabilities and individuals who are not native speakers of English, with certain requirements for certification that constitutes prima facie evidence of compliance. Allows the governing Authority to request the Department of Transportation to perform studies of the emissions associated with traffic. In provisions regarding the governing Authority requesting the Department of Transportation to perform traffic impact studies, including studies of the emissions associated with traffic, provides that the Department of Transportation may charge a fee to cover the costs of the emissions study. **Status:** Sent to the Governor on 6/24/2025

SB1697 - CARBON CAPTURE-COMPENSATION (Sen. Fine/Rep. Hoffman)

Description: Amends the Carbon Dioxide Transportation and Sequestration Act. Removes language providing that if, after July 1, 2026, the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration has not adopted final revisions to specified pipeline safety rules, the Commission may only approve a certificate of authority if it finds that the applicant has met all of the requirements of the Act, has already acquired all of its other necessary approvals, and is compliant with any requirements or conditions adopted by the Commission. Provides that a nonconsenting pore space owner's compensation shall include just compensation and any operations term or injection term payments made upon or after the initiation of injection provided to consenting pore space owners in consideration of allowing use of their pore space for sequestration of carbon dioxide. Provides that a nonconsenting pore space owner's compensation shall be no less than the average total payment package, considered as a whole with respect to an individual owner, provided in agreements to similarly situated consenting pore space owners for use of their pore space by the same sequestration operator for the same sequestration project (instead of provided in agreements during the previous 365 days to similarly situated consenting pore space owners). Amends the Safety and Aid for the Environment in Carbon Capture and Sequestration Act. Provides that an affected landowner is entitled to reasonable compensation from an applicant that has been granted a certificate of authority under this Act for damages resulting from access to the landowner's property for required activities taken to construct the pipeline, including, but not limited to, compensation for specified damages. Sets forth provisions concerning payment of the compensation; attorney's fees; and an applicant entering into an agreement with the Department of Agriculture that governs the mitigation of agricultural impacts associated with the construction of the proposed pipeline. Status: Sent to the Governor on 6/27/2025

SB1859 - CLIMATE DISPLACEMENT ACT (Sen. Guzman/Rep. Guzzardi)

Description: Creates the Climate Displacement Task Force Act for the purpose of making recommendations regarding climate displacement within the State. Contains provisions concerning the appointment of members to the Task Force and the duties of the Task Force. Requires the Climate Displacement Illinois Task Force to submit 2 reports, with specific requirements, no later than June 30, 2026, and June 30, 2027, respectively. Requires monthly meetings. Provides for the dissolution of the Task Force. Repeals the Act on December 31, 2028. **Status:** Sent to the Governor on 6/27/2025

Water Resources Management

HB1699 - WASTEWATER OPERATOR PROGRAM (Rep. Avelar/Sen. Ellman)

Description: Amends the Environmental Protection Act. In a provision regarding operator certification for sewage works, provides that the Environmental Protection Agency shall establish an operator-in-training wastewater operator program by which a person who does not possess a high school diploma

or its equivalent may act as an operator-in-training working under a certified wastewater operator. Allows the Agency to adopt rules. Amends the Public Water Supply Operations Act. In a provision regarding community water supply operator certification, provides that the Agency shall establish an operator-in-training community water-supply operator program by which a person who does not possess a high school diploma or its equivalent may act as an operator-in-training working under a certified community wastewater operator. Allows the Agency to adopt rules. **Status:** Sent to the Governor on 6/17/2025

HB2391 - EPA-WASTEWATER INDUSTRY USE (Rep. Muhl/Sen. Simmons)

Description: Amends the Environmental Protection Act. In a provision regarding wastewater reuse, provides that, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the use of treated municipal wastewater from a publicly owned treatment works is authorized for irrigation and industrial use (rather than only irrigation) when conducted in accordance with a permit issued under certain provisions of the Act. **Status:** Sent to the Governor on 6/20/2025

HB2409 – PFAS-FIREFIGHTING PPE (Rep. Kelly/Sen. Villivalam)

Description: Description: Amends the PFAS Reduction Act. Provides that the amendatory Act may be referred to as the Deputy Chief Pete Bendinelli PFAS PPE Act. Provides that, beginning January 1, 2026, any person, firm, association, partnership, corporation, organization, joint venture, importer, or domestic distributor of firefighting agents or firefighting equipment that sells firefighting personal protective equipment containing PFAS chemicals to any person, local government, or State agency shall provide written notice to the purchaser at the time of sale which shall state: (i) that the firefighting personal protective equipment contains PFAS chemicals; and (ii) the reason PFAS chemicals are added to the equipment. Requires the seller and the purchaser of the equipment to retain a copy of the required notice on file for at least 3 years from the date of the purchase. Provides that, upon the request of the Agency, the seller shall furnish the notice, or written copies, and associated sales documentation to the Agency within 60 days of such request. Provides that, beginning January 1, 2027, a person that sells firefighting personal protective equipment to any person, local government, or State agency shall not manufacture, knowingly sell, offer for sale, distribute for sale, or distribute for use in the State any firefighting personal protective equipment containing intentionally added PFAS chemicals. Defines "auxiliary firefighting personal protective equipment". Provides that, beginning January 1, 2030, a person that sells auxiliary firefighting personal protective equipment to any person, local government, or State agency shall not knowingly manufacture, sell, offer for sale, distribute for sale, or distribute for use in the State any auxiliary firefighting personal protective equipment containing intentionally added PFAS chemicals. Defines terms.

Status: Sent to the Governor on 6/20/2025

HB2516 - PFAS PRODUCT BAN (Rep. Rashid/Sen. Morrison)

Description: Amends the PFAS Reduction Act. Provides that, beginning January 1, 2032, a person may not sell, offer for sale, or distribute for sale in this State certain products if the product contains intentionally added PFAS. Provides that "product" does not include a prosthetic or orthotic device or any item that is a medical device or drug or that is otherwise used in a medical setting or in medical applications regulated by the United States Food and Drug Administration. Requires the Environmental Protection Agency to prepare and submit a report to the General Assembly that includes an assessment of statutory and regulatory authority, administrative infrastructure, research capabilities, and funding necessary to develop and implement a program for the review of certain fluoropolymers used in consumer products and their potential threat to human health and the environment. Effective immediately.

Status: Sent to the Governor on 6/24/2025

SB1723 - EPA-SOLE-SOURCE AQUIFER (Sen. Faraci/Rep. Ammons)

Description: Amends the Environmental Protection Act. Provides that no person shall conduct a carbon sequestration activity within a sequestration facility that overlies, underlies, or passes through a sole-source aquifer. Specifies that this provisions does not deprive the Environmental Protection Agency of the authority to deny a carbon sequestration permit. Defines "sole-source aquifer". **Status:** Sent to the Governor on 6/18/2025